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AL AIN

Bounded by mountains in the east and the dunes of Al Rub’ Al Khali (the Empty
Quarter) along the west, lies the oasis city of Al Ain. A city of numerous oases,
watered by ancient irrigation channels called aflaj, Al Ain is a natural haven at
the very edge of the desert. The Cultural Sites of Al Ain, including its six oases:
Al Ain, Mutaredh, Jimi, Qattara, Muwaiji and Hili. and the archaeological sites of
Hafit, Hili and Bidaa bint Saud, were inscribed in 2011 as a World Heritage Site.

Al Ain’s early residents constructed the aflaj to distribute water from the
mountains to the oases, enabling farms and plantations to flourish. For
thousands of years, travellers have been drawn to Al Ain for its fresh water,
verdant environment and its strategic location.

Many of Al Ain’s oases village communities and its vital aflaj were guarded
by watchtowers and forts. Border disputes and skirmishes were frequent,
making defence of the oases and their water resources essential. During the
late nineteenth century, Sheikh Zayed the First and his sons built a number of
forts in Al Ain, including Al Jahili Fort.




SHEIKH ZAYED BIN KHALIFA
(ZAYED THE FIRST)

1836 - 1909



AL JAHILI FORT

Al Jahili Fortis one of the largest traditional forts
in Al Ain. The different elements of this ancient
mudbrick fortification provide a strong physical
and visual link to important local and regional
events in both the nineteenth and twentieth
centuries. Today, the fort’s prominent location
at the centre of Al Ain city and its landmark
status has come to symbolise the traditional
architecture and cultural heritage of Abu Dhabi.

Al Janhili Fort enjoys special significance, as it
is strongly associated with Sheikh Zayed bin
Khalifa, also known as Zayed the First, who ruled
from 1855 to 1909. The construction of Al Jahili
Fort began during his reign in 1891 and was
completed by 1898. The date of its completion,
1316 AH, (1898 CE) was inscribed on a wooden
panel at the entrance of the fort, which displays
the following two verses:

A door of goodness opens in this glorious chapter,
Where joy and happiness reside.

The blessings of honour said, ‘Mark this house,
A house of high standing built by Zayed bin Khalifa

The oldest parts of the fort are the multi-
tiered round tower and the old fort. The tower
and the nearby falaj are clearly related and
together probably formed part of the network
of eighteenth century plantations in Al Ain that
represent the first phase of activity at Al Jahili.

The old fort comprises a roughly 35 m square
inner structures with crenellated walkways
and tall round towers at the diagonally
opposite northwest and southeast corners.
The southwest corner was originally provided

with a square tower, whilst the northeast corner
appears from the outset to have contained the
residential buildings. In its size and the layout
of its defensive and internal features, the fort
at Al Jahili is more or less identical to both the
earlier old fort at Qasr Al Hosn in Abu Dhabi
and the later Sultan Fort in the oasis of Al Ain,
providing clear evidence of a continuity in the
approach to fort building from the end of the
eighteenth century right through to the early
years of the twentieth century.

A rectangular courtyard 90 x 60 m between
the old fort and the earlier watchtower was
created by joining them within a single
enclosure wall. The arrangement appears to
derive from the traditional sur plan found in
the earlier seventeenth and eighteenth century



tower houses of Al Ain, which comprise a three
storey stronghold at one corner of a walled
compound. As with these earlier buildings, the
enclosure at Al Jahili could function as a place
to safely gather people and livestock during
raids. Entrance to the enclosure was through
an arched gate in the northern wall similar to
that still preserved in the old fort. This original
gate was still standing in 1948 and has recently
been reconstructed based on evidence from
archaeology and historic photographs.

The use of this earlier group of buildings
was offered by Sheikh Shakhbut bin Sultan
Al Nahyan to the Trucial Scouts in 1955.

The first stages of the military protection
involved the creation of a new administrative

compound in the western enclosure of the fort,
with accommodation for the troops and stores
arranged in two symmetrical blocks north and
south of a central courtyard. An additional gate
to this western compound was provided in the
position of the present monumental entrance
to the fort. The northern block contained the
armoury and the wireless post and surviving
details of both these elements were revealed
during recent works to install the permanent
exhibition of Wilfred Thesiger photographs.
A cook house for the troops was built in the
angle between the old fort and the eastern wall
of the enclosure, and a large barracks with a tin
roof was constructed for other ranks inside the
courtyard of the old fort, with further buildings
erected against the exterior of its western wall.



The round watchtower was initially used as
a sentry post but was converted to officers’
quarters in 1957 by the addition of the existing
intermediate storey. The upper room in the
original watchtower itself, at the highest point
of the fort and therefore in receipt of the coolest
breeze, was reserved for the commanding
officer. These changes to the tower are
immortalised on the back of the 50 dirham
note, one of the many historic images of the
tower taken at this time.

From 1986-1989 a restoration of the fort included
the creation of a single large courtyard now used
for cultural events and community programmes.
The present monumental entrance flanked by
large towers was added during the 1986-1989

restoration. All the new parts of the building
added during the 1980s were built using the
same traditional combination of mudbrick walls
with palm log roofs.

Conservation and rehabilitation works carried
out by the Department of Culture and Tourism
- Abu Dhabi in 2007 preserved the fabric
and value of this historic building, whilst
transforming the most recent parts of the
building into an active visitor destination with
an information centre, and permanent and
temporary exhibition spaces. The conservation
and development process was informed
throughout by archaeological investigations and
documentation that allowed the preservation
and interpretation of the various parts of
the building.






The concept behind this conservation and
rehabilitation project was to combine the
traditional materials and techniques of earthen
building with innovative modern technology to
allow for additional cooling inside the rooms
around the arcaded gallery. The technology
used in the building supplements the thermal
qualities of the existing earth walls to provide
a comfortable environment for modern year-
round use. This has been achieved by the use
of a network of chilled water pipes laid beneath
the mud plaster over almost every vertical and
horizontal surface, cooling the building during
the summer.

The project has also sought to raise the profile
and underline the relevance of earthen buildings
to the architectural heritage of the United Arab
Emirates, whilst emphasising the green and
recyclable qualities of the materials traditionally
used in the buildings of Al Ain, principally the
various by-products of the palm tree. The
project was awarded the Terra Award at terra
Lyon 2016, the XlIth World Congress on Earthen
Architectures and the 2010 International

Architecture Award by the Chicago Athenaeum
Museum of Architecture and Design and the
European Centre for Architecture Art Design and
Urban Studies.

Al Jahili Fort, with its exhibition spaces and
information centre, is the first project of its kind
to combine traditional and new technologies
within the context of a large historic mudbrick
structure and has become a model for the
adaptive reuse of traditional buildings to the
modern needs of the United Arab Emirates and
the region.






EXHIBITION

MUBARAK BIN LONDON

WILFRED THESIGER AND THE
FREEDOM OF THE DESERT

This permanent exhibition highlights the story
of British explorer Wilfred Thesiger, known in
the Arabian Peninsula as Mubarak bin London,
who enjoyed an international reputation as
an explorer, photographer and writer of travel
literature. In the period between October 1946
and May 1947, he and his companions undertook
the first crossing of the Empty Quarter to Abu
Dhabi, where they were warmly welcomed
by Abu Dhabi’s ruling Al Nahyan family. They
stayed in Abu Dhabi for twenty days, enjoying
the relative comforts offered them after the
rigours of their desert journey.

Thesiger stayed in Al Ain for around one
month, as a guest of Sheikh Zayed bin Sultan Al
Nahyan, and frequently attended his daily Majlis

(meeting places where community members
sat together to discuss local events and issues,
exchange news, receive guests and socialise -
as inscribed on the Representative List of the
Intangible Cultural Heritage of Humanity in
2015). During his visit, Thesiger explored the
region and accompanied Sheikh Zayed bin
Sultan Al Nahyan on hunting trips. They rode
camels and used falcons and Saluki dogs to
track and hunt bustards and wild rabbits. The
two men became close friends through their
shared love of the desert and its traditions.

Thesiger wrote about his travels only after
much persuasion from his friends. In 1959, ten
years after his second trip through the desert of
the Empty Quarter, he published his first book,
Arabian Sands.






Entrance Gate
The fortified gate displays the beauty of the
traditional architecture of this historic building.

Visitors Centre

The Visitors Centre provides all the cultural
and tourist information available about Al Ain.
Emirati coffee is also served in the Majlis.

Temporary Exhibitions

The temporary exhibitions hall is used for
a variety of programmes right throughout
the year.

The Round Tower

The tower represents the traditional architectural
design used to defend the oases of Al Ain. This
tower is older than the fort, and was originally
a watchtower. Today, the tower, with its four

levels, has become an architectural symbol for
Al Ain city.

The Old Fort

The original four corners of the old fort consisted
of 3 round and one square tower one at three
corners, while the fourth corner contained the
residential part of the fort.

Permanent Exhibition
Mubarak bin London and the Freedom
of the Desert

Discover the life of British explorer Wilfred
Thesiger, known in the Arabian Peninsula as
Mubarak bin London, who was an explorer,
photographer and a writer of travel literature.






THE MOSQUE

Located to the south west beyond the walls
of Al Jahili Fort, the mosque is probably
contemporary with the inner fort built by Sheikh
Zayed the First at the end of the nineteenth
century. The historic fabric of the building
survives intact below a new layer of mud
plaster added during its conservation process.
The mosque comprises of a single room with
an open arcade on the eastern side and can be
entered from an enclosed courtyard. Within the
courtyard stands a low platform from which the
call to prayer was made, along with asmall room,
which was originally probably used for ritual
ablutions. The mosque, in its entirety, reflects
the traditional style of the historic mosques
in the Al Ain area, which are characterised by
their simplicity.
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